
 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 12, 2017 

3:30 PM 

Agenda 

1. Roll Call           Page 

2. Public Comment  

3. Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of September 14, 2017    (1) 

4. Executive Director Report  

5. Election of Officers           (8) 

6. Resolution Authorizing Personnel to Execute Documentation on Behalf of PLB  (9) 

7. Resolution Granting Authorization to Acquire Tax Delinquent Property    (11) 

Through Sheriff Sale, Subject to Certain Terms and Conditions 

8. Resolutions for Bank Signatory Approval       (13) 

9. Resolutions for Appointments to the Finance Committee, Strategic Plan    (16) 

Committee, and the Policy Committee 

10. Update on Second Amendment to PRA Memorandum of Understanding    

11. Update on Insurance 

a. Directors’ and Officers 

b. Liability 

12. Update and Approval on Memorandum of Understanding with the City 

of Philadelphia, SRC, and PGW 

13. Update on Property Transfers        (19) 

14. Land Bank Acquisition and Sales Report       (20)  

15. Old Business 

a. LAMA  

b. Land Bank Staffing 

16. Adjournment 

This meeting is open to the public 

bonacce1
Cross-Out



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 83 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK  
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Thursday, 
September 14, 2017 commencing at 3:33 p.m. in the offices of the Philadelphia Housing 
Development Corporation, being its regular meeting place, 17th Floor, 1234 Market Street, 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, pursuant to proper notices. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Kates called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m. 

 
 
CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
The Vice-Chairman announced that prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive 
Session to consider certain litigation, personnel and staffing issues.  
 
Ms. Kates accepted the letter of resignation from Mr. Rodriguez.  Ms. Kates congratulated Mr. 
Rodriguez on accepting the Executive Director’s position at the Land Bank.   
 

Agenda Item 1 
Roll Call 

 
The following members of the Board of Directors reported present:  Jennifer Kates, Vice-Chair, 
Christian Dunbar, Michael Koonce, Rick Sauer, Majeedah Rashid, Lauren Vidas, Dominique 
Casimir and Courtney Voss. 
 
The following members of the Board of Directors were not present:  Richard DeMarco and 
Paulette Adams.  
 
The following staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Steven Cusano, Esq., Christi 
Jackson, Andrea Saah, Brian Romano, Jamila Davis, Cristina Martinez, Alex Sharshniov, 
Elizabeth Bonaccorso, and Anne Fadullon.   
 
Public Attendees:  The list of public attendees is attached to these minutes. There were no public 
attendees 
 

A quorum of directors was present and the meeting, having been duly convened, was ready to 
proceed with business.   

 

 

1



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 84 

Agenda Item 2 
Public Comment 

 
Ms. Kates asked if any member of the public wished to comment upon any item on the Board’s 
agenda.  
 
There were no comments from the public 
 

Agenda Item 3 
Approval of Board Minutes 

 
Ms. Kates called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Rescheduled Board meeting of 
August 22, 2017.  
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes were approved as presented. 
 
Two (2) Abstentions:  Ms. Vidas and Ms. Casimir.   
 
 

Agenda Item 4 
Approval of Second Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding Between the  

Philadelphia Land Bank and the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority  
 

Mr. Cusano requested approval of the Second Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Land Bank and the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority.  Mr. Cusano stated that 
the Land Bank will reimburse the Authority for salary and fringe benefits on a monthly basis 
with appropriate invoicing from the Authority and that, upon request by the Land Bank, the 
Authority will provide documentation to support the invoice.  Mr. Cusano stated that the 
Authority will account for the proceeds of sale of City properties via the VPRC and provide the 
Land Bank with a monthly report.  These proceeds will be transferred from the Authority to the 
Land Bank.  Mr. Cusano further stated that the Amended and Restated MOU is extended until 
June 30, 2018.  
 
Ms. Kates asked if only salary and fringe benefits will be reimbursed and that the term has been 
extended.  Mr. Cusano replied yes. 
 
Mr. Koonce asked with regards to the Amended and Restated MOU is there any stipulations that 
the Authority submits invoices in a timely manner.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the Authority 
will be submitting monthly invoices and the Land Bank will send out reminders as well.  
 
Mr. Koonce asked if the receipts will continue to go directly to the Authority and stated that a 
settlement clerk is on loan from the Authority.  Mr. Cusano replied that the proceeds go directly 
to the Authority, but are then later transferred to the Land Bank.  Ms. Kates stated this proceeds 
is not in line with the title.  Mr. Cusano responded he is not sure.  Ms. Fadullon informed the 
members of the Board that any proceeds to the Authority will go directly to the Land Bank.   
 

2



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 85 

Ms. Kates wanted clarification between PRA transferring the funds and the proceeds coming 
directly to the Land Bank.  Ms. Fadullon replied that Land Bank is reimbursing the Authority’s 
staff salaries and fringe benefits only.  Mr. Koonce asked how many salaries. Mr. Rodriguez 
responded three (3).  
 
 
Ms. Kates called for a motion to approve the Second Amendment to the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Philadelphia Land Bank and the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority.  
 
Upon motion and duly seconded, the Second Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding 
was approved as follows:  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 – 41  
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND 
RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND THE PHILADELPHIA LAND 
BANK 
 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority and the Philadelphia Land Bank 
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding, effective as of October 3, 2014 (“Original 
Memorandum of Understanding”), through which the Redevelopment Authority agreed to: (i) 
provide staffing and funding support to the Land Bank; (ii) provide for the transfer of title to 
certain properties owned by the Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank; and (iii) arrange for 
transfer of management and maintenance of certain software operational systems then controlled 
by the Redevelopment Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2015 the parties entered into an Amended and Restated 

Memorandum of Understanding (“Amended and Restated MOU”) which extended the 
agreements and conditions of the Original Memorandum of Understanding through Fiscal Year 
2016; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2016, the parties entered into a First Amendment to the 

Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding which extended the agreements and 
conditions of the Amended and Restated MOU through Fiscal Year 2017, among other things; 

 
WHEREAS, the parties now desire to renew, extend and modify certain provisions of 

the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding, as amended, as more specifically 
provided in the Summary of Major Terms (“Summary”) attached to this Resolution; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank has considered the 

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding and finds that 
its adoption is in the best interests of the Land Bank. 

 

3



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 86 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Philadelphia Land Bank that the Executive Director of the Land Bank may enter into a Second 
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding with the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director consistent 
with the terms and conditions stated in the Summary presented to the Board, attached to this 
Resolution.  

 
 

Agenda Item 5  
Finance Committee Report  

 
Ms. Kates called for a motion to table the Finance Committee Report.  
 
Upon motion and duly seconded, the Finance Committee Report was tabled.  
 

Agenda Item 6  
Approval of Land Bank Budget  

 
This item was removed from the agenda prior to the meeting.  
 

Agenda Item 7  
Update on Property Transfers  

 
Ms. Saah provided an update of property transfers.  Ms. Saah stated that there have been no 
additional transfers.  Eighty-nine (89) properties have been sold by the Land Bank.  Ms. Saah 
stated that VPRC has not approved any additional properties.  Ms. Saah further stated the Parcel 
Reconciliation Report dated September 6th indicates that 89 lots haven been conveyed.  Ms. 
Saah indicated that City Council is back in session. 
 
Ms. Vidas asked about the properties that have not being approved.  Ms. Jackson replied that 
each agency has its own inventory of properties in the City which are not in possession, such as 
bus depots, expressway entrances and libraries.  
 
 
Ms. Kates stated the Board would like to have an understanding of the reasons that properties are 
being withheld universal.  The Land Bank was preparing batches of deeds.  Ms. Kates requested 
that staff present and show a list of properties that still need to go over to City Council.  Ms. 
Jackson replied that some properties are flagged in the system.   Ms. Saah stated that the report 
shows a universal number.   
 
Ms. Kates requested that the report should include a line of the number of properties presented to 
Council.  
 
Ms. Vidas pointed out that there is marketable land along with potential properties going into the 
Land Bank’s inventory.    
 

4



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 87 

Ms. Kates stated that staff should update LAMA and code the properties that are in the park 
system.  Ms. Vidas stated this would get a real number.  Mr. Koonce replied that the Board is not 
going to get a true number.   
 
 
Ms. Saah stated that parking lots, playgrounds and libraries are not completed as of yet.  There 
are 2,300 properties that have been transferred.   
 
Ms. Casimir stated that Parks & Recreations have some that are storm water on hold by City 
Council request.  Ms. Jackson asked about scheduling a meeting with staff next month.   
 

Agenda Item 8  
Land Bank Disposition and Sales Report  

 
Ms. Saah provided an update of property transfers.  Ms. Kates asked about the number of 
properties not being approved; however, are vetted for various reasons.   
 
Ms. Kates stated that the Land Bank is about one-third of the way in with potential transfers.  
 
Mr. Koonce stated the number is large and the Authority is still in the evaluating process.  
 
Ms. Vidas recommended that the Board set up goals.   
 
Mr. Koonce asked about how long is the budget sustainable with regard to property transfers.  
Ms. Jackson replied that Ms. Saah’s contract has been extended until December 31, 2018.   
 
Ms. Vidas requested that a contact list of Land Bank staff be sent to the Board members.   
 
Ms. Kates stated that training would be useful.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that a training will be 
scheduled once all board members have been seated.   
 

Agenda Item 9  
Old Business  

 
LAMA Training for Board and Council Members  
 
Ms. Jackson advised the Board that she has been in contact with Davenport and training is 
behind schedule; however, training is being scheduled for October 4th and October 5th.  Ms. 
Jackson stated that the LAMA upgrade was completed and we are still working on minor issues.   
 
Ms. Jackson stated that the LAMA program has stopped working for Council members due to 
the 365 upgrade.  She asked the Board to check with staff and determine who is experiencing 
issues with LAMA.  Ms. Jackson stated that City Council members and staff have different 
needs for LAMA.  She asked the board to identify the needs of their offices and to let her know.  
Ms. Jackson also asked the board members to identify which offices did not have LAMA. 
 

5



                  Board Meeting of September 14, 2017 
                  Volume No. 1 – Page 88 

Ms. Fadullon stated that MS. Jackson should speak with Ms. Patel and let her know who has 
access or who needs to get access to LAMA. Ms. Kates requested that Ms. Patel prepares a 
presentation for the Board and asked to include search capabilities, value and how the websites 
appears to the public.   
 
Land Bank Staffing  
 
Mr. Rodriguez informed the Board that the Land Bank is looking to hire certain positions.  At 
this time, he is in the process of reviewing job descriptions.   Mr. Rodriguez stated that the bi-
lingual clerk position is moving forward, and the project manager positions are underway.   
 
Ms. Kates asked if anyone in attendance had any additional questions or concerns that they 
would like the Board to consider.   No questions and concerns were presented to the Board.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Kates declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:04 p.m.  
 
 
 

    ___________________________ 
       SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 
 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Ph
ila

de
lp

hi
a 

La
nd

 B
an

k 
Pa

rc
el

 R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
R

ep
or

t, 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

7 
   

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ra

ns
fe

r S
ta

tu
s 

 
fo

r P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r T
ra

ns
fe

r/A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

C
IT

Y 
PH

D
C

 
PR

A
 

TA
X 

PR
IV

A
TE

 
TO

TA
L 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r T
ra

ns
fe

r/A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

12
30

 
77

4 
29

5 
34

 
1 

23
34

 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 W
ith

he
ld

 fr
om

 T
ra

ns
fe

r t
o 

P
LB

 
66

 
10

 
84

 
 

 
16

0 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 U
nd

er
 R

ev
ie

w
 fo

r T
ra

ns
fe

r t
o 

P
LB

 
37

 
36

 
25

 
 

 
98

 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 In
 P

ro
ce

ss
 o

f T
ra

ns
fe

r t
o/

A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

by
 P

LB
 

17
 

6 
15

 
0 

0 
38

 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 T
ra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
/A

cq
ui

re
d 

by
 P

LB
  

11
10

 
72

2 
17

1 
34

 
1 

20
38

* 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 S
ol

d 
by

 P
LB

  
52

 
37

 
3 

0 
0 

92
 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 in

 P
LB

  
10

58
 

68
5 

16
8 

34
 

1 
19

46
 

 
P

ub
lic

 A
ge

nc
y 

P
ro

pe
rti

es
 N

ot
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r T

ra
ns

fe
r, 

P
os

si
bl

y 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

(S
ta

tu
s:

 A
va

ila
bl

e,
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

(n
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l))

 
24

85
 

0 
66

8 
 

 
31

53
 

 
  M
ile

st
on

es
 fo

r D
ee

ds
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

 to
 b

e 
Tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 P
LB

  
C

IT
Y 

54
 

PH
D

C
 4

2 
PR

A
 4

0 
TA

X 
PR

IV
A

TE
 

TO
TA

L 

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 u
nd

er
 re

vi
ew

 fo
r s

ui
ta

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
ra

ns
fe

r 
37

 
36

 
25

 
 

 
98

 

 
W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r s
ur

ve
ys

, c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

de
ed

s,
 s

he
rif

f’s
 d

ee
ds

, o
r a

 re
so

lu
tio

n 
16

 
6 

5 
0 

0 
27

 

 
D

ee
d 

ex
hi

bi
t d

ra
fte

d,
 re

ad
y 

fo
r C

ity
 a

tto
rn

ey
 re

vi
ew

  (
P

U
B

, P
H

D
C

)  
1 

0 
 

 
 

1 

 
D

ee
d 

ex
hi

bi
t u

nd
er

 D
O

R
 re

vi
ew

 (P
U

B
, P

H
D

C
, P

R
A

)  
0 

0 
5 

 
 

5 

 
D

ee
d 

ex
hi

bi
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

D
O

R
 (P

U
B

, P
H

D
C

, P
R

A
)  

0 
0 

5 
 

 
5 

 
S

ec
on

d 
de

ed
 e

xh
ib

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ra
fte

d 
(P

U
B

 O
N

LY
)  

0 
 

 
 

 
0 

 
D

ee
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
en

t f
or

 e
xe

cu
tio

n 
(P

U
B

/P
R

A
, P

H
D

C
, P

R
A

)  
0 

0 
0 

 
 

0 

 
D

ee
d 

in
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f b
ei

ng
 re

co
rd

ed
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 P
LB

 s
in

ce
 8

/7
/2

01
7 

 
(P

U
B

/P
R

A
, P

H
D

C
, P

R
A,

 T
A

X,
 P

R
IV

A
TE

) 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 

* 
Th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r c
on

ve
ye

d 
to

 th
e 

la
nd

 b
an

k 
to

 d
at

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ta
x 

sa
le

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
s.

  P
ro

pe
rti

es
 s

ol
d 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
de

du
ct

ed
 fr

om
 th

is
 to

ta
l. 

19



Ph
ila

de
lp

hi
a 

La
nd

 B
an

k 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 D

is
po

si
tio

ns
 R

ep
or

t (
as

 o
f 1

0/
1/

20
17

) 

  
YE

AR
 1

 
7/

1/
20

16
 –

 6
/3

0/
20

17
 

YE
AR

 2
 

7/
1/

20
17

 –
 6

/3
0/

20
18

 

Di
sp

os
iti

on
 T

yp
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
 

Pl
an

 G
oa

ls
  

N
o.

 o
f L

ot
s 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
N

o.
 o

f U
ni

ts
 

To
 B

e 
Bu

ilt
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
 

Pl
an

 G
oa

ls
  

N
o.

 o
f L

ot
s  

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 
(Y

TD
) 

N
o.

 o
f U

ni
ts

 
To

 B
e 

Bu
ilt

 
(Y

TD
) 

In
cr

ea
se

 O
ve

r  
La

st
 M

on
th

 

Si
de

 Y
ar

ds
 

45
 lo

ts
 

4 
lo

ts
 

 
81

 lo
ts

 
1 

lo
ts

 
 

0 
lo

ts
 

To
ta

l H
ou

si
ng

/M
ix

ed
 U

se
  

17
0 

un
its

 
10

0 
lo

ts
 

15
5 

un
its

 
20

5 
un

its
 

0 
lo

ts
 

0 
un

its
 

0 
lo

ts
/0

 u
ni

ts
 

20
 %

 a
t 3

0%
 o

r b
el

ow
 o

f A
M

I 
34

 
6 

9 
41

 
0 

0 
0 

30
 %

 a
t 6

0%
 o

r b
el

ow
 o

f A
M

I 
50

 
54

 
80

 
62

 
0 

0 
0 

25
 %

 a
t 1

20
%

 o
r b

el
ow

 o
f A

M
I 

43
 

24
 

37
 

51
 

0 
0 

0 
25

 %
 n

on
-in

co
m

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

43
 

16
 

29
 

51
 

0 
0 

0 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 E

xp
an

si
on

s 
3 

lo
ts

 
2 

lo
ts

 
 

6 
lo

ts
 

0 
lo

ts
 

 
0 

lo
ts

 
G

ar
de

ns
/O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e 
 

33
 lo

ts
 

0 
lo

ts
 

 
33

 lo
ts

 
0 

lo
ts

 
 

0 
lo

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

To
ta

l D
is

po
si

tio
ns

 
25

1 
10

6 
lo

ts
* 

15
5 

un
its

 
32

5 
1 

lo
t+  

0 
un

its
 

1 
lo

t/
0 

un
its

 
*A

s o
f 1

0/
1/

20
17

, 9
2 

lo
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
fo

r d
is

po
si

tio
n 

in
 Y

ea
r 1

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
ve

ye
d.

   
+ As

 o
f 1

0/
1/

20
17

, 0
 lo

ts
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r d

is
po

si
tio

n 
in

 Y
ea

r 2
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

ve
ye

d.
 

  VP
RC

 S
al

es
 R

ep
or

t –
 (a

s o
f 1

0/
1/

20
17

) 

 
YE

AR
 1

  
7/

1/
20

16
 –

 6
/3

0/
20

17
 

YE
AR

 2
  

7/
1/

20
17

 –
 6

/3
0/

20
18

 

Di
sp

os
iti

on
 T

yp
e 

N
o.

 o
f L

ot
s S

ol
d 

N
o.

 o
f L

ot
s S

ol
d 

(Y
TD

) 
In

cr
ea

se
 O

ve
r L

as
t M

on
th

 

Si
de

 Y
ar

ds
 

34
 

17
 

6 
O

th
er

 S
al

es
 

38
 

10
 

3 
N

on
pr

of
it 

(G
ar

de
ns

/O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e)

 
10

 
9 

8 
N

on
pr

of
it 

(O
th

er
) 

3 
2 

2 
 

 
 

 
To

ta
l S

al
es

 
85

 
38

 
19

 
 20


	PLB Board Agenda of 10-12-2017
	10-12-17 PLB Agenda

	Board Package F
	Board Package Final
	09-14-2017 Board Mintues
	09-14-2017 Minutes (revised by SC w  track changes 9 22 17) (2)
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	Agenda Item 1
	Roll Call


	09-14-2017 Sign In Sheet

	09-14-2017 Sign In Sheet

	Board Items
	Item 13 - PLB Parcel Recon board report 10-1-17
	Item 14 - PLB approved dispositions  VPRC settlements report (10-1-2017)




